
Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, October 12, 2021 @ 6:30 PM 
ZOOM-ONLY MEETING 

 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road, Green Mountain Falls, Colorado 80819 

Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83938863350?pwd=aGxCNmw1RXljRDFkcXBicnREaWRtUT09 

Meeting ID: 839 3886 3350; Passcode: 934798 

 

TIME  ITEM  
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 
6:30 1. CALL TO ORDER  

 2. AUDIO CHECK  

 3. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA  

 4. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
September 14, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes 

Action 
Recommended 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT**  

 6. NEW BUSINESS  

 a.  No new business  

 7. OLD BUSINESS  

 a.  OCT2021-01 – 10650 Hondo – Town parcel purchase 
Action 
Recommended 

 8. OTHER BUSINESS  

 9. Adjournment  
 

**Register for public comment by 4:00 PM the day of the meeting: staff@gmfco.us; planner@gmfco.us 
 

Planning Commission Members: 
Todd Dixon, Chair  
Lamar Matthews, Commissioner 
Sean Ives, Commissioner 
Gregory Williamson, Vice Chair 
Paul Yingling, Commissioner  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83938863350?pwd=aGxCNmw1RXljRDFkcXBicnREaWRtUT09
mailto::%20staff@gmfco.us;%20planner@gmfco.us
mailto::%20staff@gmfco.us;%20planner@gmfco.us


 

Page 1 
1 

MEETING MINUTES 

Planning Commission 
September 14, 2021 

6:30 p.m. In-Person/Zoom Hybrid Meeting  

Commissioners Present: Todd Dixon, Sean Ives, Lamar Matthews (Zoom), Paul Yingling (Zoom) 
Commissioners Absent: Gregory Williamson 
Ex Officio Member: Mayor Jane Newberry 
Board of Trustees Liaison:  
GMF Staff: Nate Scott 
Link to Zoom Video Recording 

Agenda Item Motion/Discussion M/S TD SI LM GW PY JN 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL Meeting called to order at 6:30pm  

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, & 
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Moved to strike Item 8b  PY/LM A A A  A  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- August 10, 
2021 

Moved to approve SI/PY A A A  A  

4. PUBLIC COMMENT No public comment        

5. NEW BUSINESS         

a. AUG2021-02 - 6620 Pine – 
Deck Application 

Staff report - Matt Swanson, applicant, was on 
Zoom. This is for a replacement deck. Summary of 
materials are in the packet. Submitted to PPR also. 
Site plan does not have ILC but does have an aerial 
photo from 2018 El Paso county. Staff does not have 
any concerns, no set back concerns. Rec to approve. 
  
Chair Dixon - Location of property markers? 
Swanson - have not exposed any prop corners but 

LM/ PY         A A A  A  

https://us02web.zoom.us/rec/share/4FberRuDXBCzn3_2nlCAzJNUVQO19PLDaoUnz5lyut6nvbH_MweyrAf_w-7PYiHT.fOKd2vYG0wh3Na75?startTime=1631664987000


Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

In Person/Zoom Meeting 
Tuesday, Sept. 14, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 2 

inside min requirements. Commissioner Ives - no 
issue since it is not close to the property line. Other 
commissioners agreed. 
 
Moved to approve.  Motion passed - 4/0 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

       

a. MAY2021-01 - 11070 Belvidere 
- Remodel 

Staff report - When last presented the package 
lacked site plan with building measurements and 
letters from trustee ownership. Resubmitted for a 
3rd floor addition. No change to building footprint.  
Staff report indicated no setback issues due to no 
footprint change.  Building heights were added to 
plans. Septic will be tagged by PPRBD to El Paso 
County Health to review it. 
Com to staff - none 
Applicant - not present 
Com discussion - Can’t meet some of the setbacks, 
might need a variance. Staff needs to check on 
setbacks. 
  
Moved to approve the architectural review 
contingent on the El Paso septic review and to 
advise that the owners obtain a  variance. 
Motion passed - 4/0 

LM/SI A A A  A  

7. OTHER BUSINESS         



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

In Person/Zoom Meeting 
Tuesday, Sept. 14, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Page 3 
 

a. 10650 Hondo Ave. – 
Encroachment on Town-owned 
parcel 

Staff report - ILC for titlework discovered an 
encroachment on town parcel. Questions arose on 
whether or not the town needs access.  Questions 
also arose regarding underground Utilities.  CSU 
water valve was found. Questions about 
underground utilities have been directed to CSU. 
Bair parcel boundary has not changed. Significant 
portion of the house encroaches on the town parcel. 
Options initially presented: 1. Town agrees to sell 
parcel to the owners 2. Land swap idea from 
surveyor who works with real estate agent. 
Neighbors have been parking on the Bair property.  
Easement could be granted to property owners.  
It was recommended Bairs get a surveyor and legal 
assistance.  
 
PC needs to take the following steps:  
Step 1 - concept plan  
Step 2 - formal plan 
 
Mayor - town would possibly sell just whatever it 
takes to clear the property.  Easements can cause 
trouble with changing owners. Fee charged for 
easement.  
 
Further discussion: Formal plan that addresses all 3 
options. What does the town need for each option?   
Do owners have a preference? PC needs to set 
requirements.  
 
Applicant - Liz Snow, real estate agent said that the 
house is under contract and a buyer has a loan so 

LM/SI A A A  A  



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

In Person/Zoom Meeting 
Tuesday, Sept. 14, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 4 

this is time critical. This was discovered when the  
title research was done. Snow says the market value 
of the town lot is 4k.  
Mayor - this lot could be valuable as a trail access or 
utility access. Does not need to run by PRT.  
 
Action: PC members give a list of items for 
Applicant to address in the Formal Plan to staff by 
the 21st of September.  
 
Consider a special meeting? Staff - yes. Sept 28th at 
6:30pm 
 
Move to approve the basic concept of transfer of 
property based on the four options being proposed.   
1 purchase of full lot 
2. purchase of a partial portion of the lot 
3. swap of lots 
4. easement  
 
Motion passed - 4/0 
 
The four options to be presented at the 9/28 
meeting. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

In Person/Zoom Meeting 
Tuesday, Sept. 14, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Page 5 
 

b. Land Use Code rewrite – 
Planning Commission and Staff 
discussion 

STRICKEN from the Agenda        

c. Planning process 
documentation – Planning 
Commission and Staff 
discussion 

Chair Dixon presented a Planning process document 
which was crafted with full staff in mind. Reviewed 
N. Scott’s comments. Chair Dixon would like to 
present to the Board for committee reports at the 
next meeting. 

       

d. Housekeeping Announcements 
Next Regular Meeting October 
12th 

Chair Dixon discussed residency requirements for PC 
members since it is a quasi-judicial committee. 
Town attorney contacted the town manager 
regarding this matter. Could result in a negated vote 
if it was a close vote. Full time residency needs to be 
documented for PC members.  
 
Action: PC members to bring in two supporting 
documents before the next meeting, October 12, to 
Scott. Documents can include: tax forms, voter 
regs, car regs, utility bill for GMF (with local billing 
address).  
 
Sept 24th is installment 1 of the Code rewrite. 
 
Action: PC members to send Code rewrite 
comments to Scott before Sept. 24th. 
   
Nov 9th meeting will be installment 2 presentation. 
PC members will have a week to make comments.   
Dec 14th meeting will be installment 3 presentation. 
PC members have a week to make comments.  
Jan 11 meeting, the code rewrite draft will be 
presented for public hearing 1.  

       



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

In Person/Zoom Meeting 
Tuesday, Sept. 14, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 6 

Feb 4th meeting will be public hearing 2. 
 
Special meeting will be held on Sept 28th. 

8. Adjournment Adjourned 7:54pm        
 



 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Staff 

  

Date: October 8, 2021 

Re: Bair purchase of Town-owned parcel 8308105005 

 

Background 

The current owners of parcel 8308105009 in El Paso County, the Bair family, are trying 
to sell their property via Liz Snow-Wheeler of Cutting Edge Realtors.  Liz reached out to the 
Town because the house is under contract, but the recent ILC for title work revealed a significant 
encroachment of the current Bair house onto parcel 8308105005, owned by the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls.  

When the Bairs purchased the property in 1982 they also had a survey/ILC completed for 
title work.  The 1981 ILC does not show the house encroaching on the property, only part of a 
south patio encroaching slightly into Lot 65, Block 19 of GMF Addition 3.  They are asking the 
Town to help fix the problem because the 1982 ILC did not raise any red flags and the 
assumption has been that the much-delayed recording of deed 209410 in 2006, creating the 
Town parcel (north 15’ of Lot 65), caused this problem.  They would like to acquire the Town 
parcel to fix the matter and proceed with the sale.   

Liz Snow-Wheeler will be attending the Planning Commission on behalf of the Bairs, 
who have limited funds but are willing to pay for a real estate attorney to draw up paperwork if 
the Planning Commission recommends this transaction.  The El Paso County Assessor’s site lists 
a market value of the property at $4,100.  The Bairs are offering $2,000, payable after the sale of 
this property.   
 
Staff recommendation 
Staff conducted a basic market value calculation based on four recent comparable purchases of 
vacant and sloped land by the Historic Green Mountain Falls Foundation.  Based on the average 
per-acre cost on these four comps, the value of parcel 8308105009 is $2,166.23.   Based on these 
comparable sales, the inclusion of a utility easement in the purchase offer, the limited benefit this 
parcel affords the Town, and the knowledge that the prospective buyers wish to resolve all title 
issues on this parcel for subsequent good sales, staff feels that a sale price of $2,000 is fair. 

 
Action Requested:   Approve this application and recommend the Board of Trustees sell the 
parcel, with perpetual easement to the Town, to the Bairs for the sum of $2,000.   
 



Site images 
 
Bair parcel in blue, Town parcel to the south (N 15’ of Lot 65): 
 

 
 
Rear water valve location and image: 
 

 
 



County Plat Map overview:   
 
 

 
 




















	2021-10-12 PC Agenda
	2021- September 14 - PC Meeting Minutes
	10650 Hondo - Packet
	10650 Hondo - Staff Report 20211008
	OCT2021-01 Signed application
	Offer Bair purchase GMF.pdf
	Attachemnt A


